
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Sharon Hughes 
 (Tel: 01443 864281   Email: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 29th March 2021 

 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee will be held via Microsoft Teams on 
Tuesday, 6th April, 2021 at 5.30 pm to consider the matters contained in the following agenda.  
Councillors and the public wishing to speak on any item can do so by making a request to the Chair.  You 
are also welcome to use Welsh at the meeting, both these requests require a minimum notice period of 3 
working days.  
 

This meeting will be recorded and made available to view via the Council’s website, except for 
discussions involving confidential or exempt items.  Therefore the images/audio of those individuals 

speaking will be publicly available to all via the recording on the Council website at 
www.caerphilly.gov.uk 

 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
Pages 

  

1  To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest. 

 
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal and/or 
prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any business on this agenda in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Code of Conduct for both Councillors 
and Officers. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/


 
To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held on 23rd February 2021. 

1 - 4 
 

4  Consideration of any matter referred to this Committee in accordance with the call-in procedure. 
 

 
5  Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme. 

5 - 14 
 

6  To receive and consider the following Cabinet Reports*: -   
 

1. Carry Over Annual Leave 2020 – 24th February 2021; 
2. Whole-Authority Revenue Budget Monitoring Report (Period 9) – 24th February 2021; 
3. Publication of Gender Pay Gap Data 2020 - Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and 

Public Authorities) Regulations 2017 – 17th March 2021; 
4. Strategic Equality Plan - Annual Monitoring and Improvement Report 2019-2020 – 24th 

March 2021; 
5. Review of Corporate Complaints Policy and Unacceptable Behaviour Policy – 24th 

March 2021. 
 

*If a member of the Scrutiny Committee wishes for any of the above Cabinet reports to be brought 
forward for review at the meeting please contact Sharon Hughes, 01443 864281, by 10.00 a.m. on 
Thursday, 1st April 2021.  
 
 
 To receive and consider the following Scrutiny report:- 
 
7  Team Caerphilly-Better Together Transformation Strategy 6-Month Update. 

15 - 34 
 

 
 
 
Circulation: 
 
Councillors M.A. Adams, Mrs E.M. Aldworth, Mrs C. Forehead, Miss E. Forehead, L. Harding, 
G. Johnston, G. Kirby (Vice Chair), C.P. Mann, B. Miles, Mrs D. Price, J. Pritchard (Chair), R. Saralis, 
Mrs M.E. Sargent, G. Simmonds, J. Taylor and L.G. Whittle 
 
 
And Appropriate Officers 
 
 
HOW WE WILL USE YOUR INFORMATION 

Those individuals that attend committee meetings to speak/give evidence will be named in the minutes of that meeting, 
sometimes this will include their place of employment or business and opinions expressed.  Minutes of Meetings including details 
of speakers will be publicly available to all via the Council website at www.caerphilly.gov.uk. except for discussions involving 
confidential or exempt items. 
 

You have a number of rights in relation to your information, including the rights of access to information we hold about you and 
the right of complaint if you are unhappy with the way your information is being processed. 
 
For further information on how we process your information and your rights please view the Full Committee Meetings Privacy 

Notice on our website or contact Legal Services by email griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk or telephone 01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/Committee/Privacy
mailto:griffd2@caerphilly.gov.uk


 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF THE DIGITAL MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS ON TUESDAY, 
23RD FEBRUARY 2021 AT 5.30 P.M. 

 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor J. Pritchard - Chair 

Councillor G. Kirby - Vice Chair 
 
 

Councillors: 
 

M. A. Adams, Mrs E. M. Aldworth, L. Harding, G. Johnston, C. P. Mann, B. Miles, Mrs D. Price, 
R. Saralis, Mrs M. E. Sargent, G. Simmonds, and L. G. Whittle. 

 
 

Cabinet Members: 
 

Cllr. C. Gordon (Cabinet Member for Corporate Services) and Cllr. Mrs E. Stenner (Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Performance and Customer Service). 

 
 

Together with: 
 

R. Edmunds (Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services), S. Harris (Head of 
Financial Services & S151 Officer), L. Lucas (Head of Customer and Digital Services), L. 
Donovan (Head of People Services), S. Richards (Head of Education, Planning and Strategy), 
R. Williams (Assistant Accountant), M. Jacques (Scrutiny Officer), S. Hughes (Committee 
Services Officer) and C. Evans (Committee Services Officer). 

 
 

RECORDING ARRANGEMENTS 
 

The Chairperson reminded those present that the meeting was being recorded and would be 
made available to view via the Council’s website, except for discussions involving confidential 
or exempt items. Click here to view. 
 

 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs C. Forehead, Miss E. Forehead and 
J. Taylor. 

 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations received at the commencement or during the course of the meeting. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings


3. MINUTES – 12TH JANUARY 2021 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee meeting 
held on 12th January 2021 (minute numbers 1 - 10) be approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair. 

 
 
4. MINUTES – 21ST JANUARY 2021 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the special meeting of the Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee held on 21st January 2021 (minute numbers 1 - 3) be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 
5. CALL-IN PROCEDURE 

 
There had been no matters referred to the Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the call-in 
procedure. 
 
 

6. POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 
M. Jacques (Scrutiny Officer) presented the report which outlined the reports planned for the 
period February 2021 to May 2021 and included all reports that were identified at the Policy and 
Resources Scrutiny Committee meeting held on Tuesday 12th January 2021.  Members were 
asked to consider the Forward Work Programme, alongside the Cabinet Forward Work 
Programme, prior to publication on the Council’s website. 

 
Following consideration of the report, it was moved and seconded that the recommendations 
be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work 
Programme be published on the Council’s website. 

 
 
7. CABINET REPORTS 

 
There had been no requests for any of the Cabinet reports to be brought forward for discussion 
at the meeting. 
 
 
REPORTS OF OFFICERS  
 
Consideration was given to the following reports. 

 
 
8. DIRECTORATE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT SIX MONTH UPDATE 2020 
 

Cllr. Mrs E. Stenner (Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and Customer Service) 
introduced the report which presented the Scrutiny Committee with the new Corporate Services 
Directorate Performance Assessment (DPA), which is part of the Council’s new Performance 
Framework.  S. Richards (Head of Education, Planning and Strategy) informed the Scrutiny 
Committee that the Council started reviewing its Performance Management Framework two 
years ago with a view to making better use of the wide range of information and intelligence 
that it holds and to future proof any new processes in line with the new Performance legislation.  
Members were advised that the framework was piloted in 2019 and endorsed by Cabinet in 
February 2020.  Part of the framework was to develop a reporting dashboard at directorate 
level.  It was highlighted that the Directorate Performance Assessment is for the first six months 
from April 2020 to September 2020.  R. Edmunds (Corporate Director for Education and Page 2



Corporate Service) shared key information, primarily in relation to the Director’s Summary, and 
provided the Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the reporting dashboard at directorate 
level and how it fits into the overall framework, and expressed thanks to the staff across 
Corporate Services for their dedication during the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Points of clarification were requested on various aspects of the report and Officers responded 
to the points raised.  In response to a query regarding the RAG status for the air quality situation 
at Hafodyrynys, it was highlighted that the Directorate Performance Assessment dashboard 
provides information and analysis for the period April 2020 to September 2020.  Members were 
advised that in terms of the air quality situation at Hafodyrynys, Legal Services has suggested 
work has started with reasonable progress achieved, classified in terms of the first six months 
of the financial year. 

 
A Member sought clarification on what is being done to reduce the number of data breaches.  
The Scrutiny Committee was advised that due to the overnight change in working practices 
arising from Covid-19 there was inevitably an issue in the early stages, but a large amount of 
work has been undertaken to ensure that the number of data breaches is reduced, including 
learning and awareness raising with staff and online training.  In response to a query regarding 
the Office 365 rollout, Members were advised that everybody who has requested an Office 
licence has received one.  Members were further advised that the 2021/22 Budget Proposals 
Report due to be considered by Council on the 24th February 2021 includes proposed additional 
funding to support the rollout of the additional features within Office 365.  It was highlighted that 
there has been huge progress within this area. 
 
Further discussion took place regarding sickness absence and the Scrutiny Committee was 
informed that sickness absence has been increasing over the recent months due to Covid 
related sickness absence as well as other sickness absences.  It was clarified that in terms of 
Covid related sickness absence, it is across the board and not just frontline services.  It was 
noted that in terms of some office-based staff, sickness absence has reduced because people 
are able to work from home. 

 
Members discussed, challenged and scrutinised the information contained within the report. 

 
 
9. TREASURY MANAGEMENT & CAPITAL FINANCING PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

QUARTER 3 MONITORING REPORT (1ST APRIL 2020 - 31ST DECEMBER 2020) 
 

Councillor Mrs E. Stenner (Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and Customer Services) 
introduced the report to present Members with details of Treasury Management activities and 
Capital Financing, together with the related Prudential Indicators for the period 1st April 2020 to 
31st December 2020.  Members were informed that the authority is obliged to approve and 
publish a number of indicators relevant to Capital Finance and Treasury Management.  It was 
highlighted that the summary of the report shows the requirement of the authority in reporting 
this information.  Members were asked to note the contents of the report to comply with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. 

 
 A discussion took place regarding the borrowing activity.  In response to a Members query, S. 

Harris (Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer) confirmed that no external borrowing has 
taken place and that internal funds are being used in the short to medium-term.  The Scrutiny 
Committee was informed that LOBO loans will be kept under review and that the authority 
acknowledges there is an element of refinancing risk even though in the current interest rate 
environment lenders are unlikely to exercise their options.  R. Williams (Assistant Accountant) 
provided a summary of recent work that has been undertaken in relation to longer-term 
investments and reference was made to a Members’ Seminar with Arlingclose on 28th April 
2021, where Members will be provided with a detailed economic outlook and updated on the 
current investment options.  

 
Having fully considered the report, the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee noted the 
contents. Page 3



 
 
10. WHOLE-AUTHORITY REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT (PERIOD 9) 
 

Councillor Mrs E. Stenner (Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and Customer Service) 
introduced the report to provide details of projected whole-authority revenue budget expenditure 
for the 2020/21 financial year, including an update on the funding received from the Welsh 
Government (WG) in respect of the financial implications of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
A discussion took place regarding additional costs incurred and income lost as a direct 
consequence of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.  In response to a Members query, the Scrutiny 
Committee was advised that there is a robust process in place around claiming the additional 
costs and income losses related to Covid and the excellent relationship between local 
authorities and the Welsh Government throughout this process was highlighted to Members.  In 
respect of the expenditure that has been disallowed at this stage, the authority is continuing to 
send additional information to Welsh Government where things are pending, but certain 
elements of expenditure have been disallowed.  Members were advised that the disallowed 
expenditure relating to the Housing Revenue Account will need to be absorbed within that 
account because it is ringfenced.  In respect of the General Fund areas where additional costs 
have not been funded, Members were asked to recall that at its meeting on the 10th September 
2020, Council approved a recommendation to transfer £2.713m into a earmarked reserve to 
meet potential unfunded additional costs arising from Covid-19.  As part of the year-end process 
for the 2020/21 financial year any disallowed Covid-19 additional costs and income losses will 
be funded from this earmarked reserve. 
 
During the course of debate concerns were expressed regarding Council Tax recovery.  S. 
Harris (Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer) confirmed that support has been received 
from Welsh Government due to collection rates being adversely affected by the impact of the 
pandemic and the Scrutiny Committee was reminded of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme, 
which is available to support households who have difficulty with their Council Tax payments 
due to their financial circumstances.  Members were advised that the Council will continue to 
recover arrears moving forward. 

 
Having noted the contents of the report, it was moved and seconded that the  recommendations 
in the report be approved.  By way of electronic voting this was unanimously agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee: 
 
i)   Supported the proposed use of reserves totalling £648k as detailed in section 5.3 of 

the report, prior to Cabinet consideration. 
 
 
 The meeting closed at 6.28 p.m. 

 
Approved as a correct record and subject to any amendments or corrections agreed and 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting held on 6th April 2021, they were signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 4



 
 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
6TH APRIL 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT: POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.   
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas 

reflect the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, 
the public or stakeholder. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme 

prior to publication. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all 

reports that were identified at the scrutiny committee meeting on Tuesday 23rd 
February 2021.   The work programme outlines the reports planned for the period 
April 2021 to February 2022. 

 
5.2 The forward Work Programme is made up of reports identified by officers and 

members.  Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the 
cabinet work programme and suggest any changes before it is published on the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



council website.  Scrutiny committee will review this work programme at every 
meeting going forward alongside any changes to the cabinet work programme or 
report requests.  

 
5.3 The Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is 

attached at Appendix 1, which presents the current status as at 15th March 2021.  
The Cabinet Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation 
flowchart is attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine 
what items should be added to the forward work programme. 

 
 

5.4 Conclusion   

The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee 
prior to publication on the council website.   
 
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 No assumptions are necessary.     
 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 As this report is for information only an Integrated Impact Assessment is not 

necessary.  
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.  
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 The Local Government Act 2000.  
 
 
 
Author:        Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer jacqum@carphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate 

Services 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, 

Page 6



Legal Services 
 Councillor James Pritchard, Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny 

Committee 
 Councillor Gez Kirby, Vice Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny 

Committee 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
Appendix 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 3 Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



                                                                                                                                         Forward Work Programme - Policy & Resources APPENDIX 1

Date Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member

06/04/2021 17:30 Team Caerphilly Transformation Programme – 6 monthly update

To provide members with an update on progress 

against the Team Caerphilly Transformation Strategy

 

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

06/04/2021 17:30 Information Item - Capital Outturn Report 2019/20
​To provide information to Members relating to the 

capital outturn for the 2019/20 financial year.
Harris, Stephen R; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

06/04/2021 17:30 Information Item - 2020/21 Capital Expenditure Monitoring Report (Period 9)
​To inform Members of projected capital expenditure 

for the 2020/21 financial year.
Harris, Stephen R; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

25/05/2021 17:30 Social Value Policy ​ Evans, Ian; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

28/09/2021 17:30 Directorate Performance Report – Corporate Services Year End Report 2020/21 Edmunds, Richard (Ed); Cllr. Gordon, Colin J;

28/09/2021 17:30 Employee Volunteering Scheme 

To seek the views of Cabinet on a proposed 

Employee Volunteering Scheme.  To seek Cabinet 

approval to implement the Scheme with a review 

carried out at 12 months on the uptake and benefits 

of the Scheme.

 

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

28/09/2021 17:30 DPA'S/CPA (Linked to APR timeline) ​ Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

28/09/2021 17:30 Annual Performance Report ​ Richards, Sue; Roberts, Ros; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

28/09/2021 17:30 Procurement Reform - New UK/Wales legisation and possibility of review of our standing orders as a result. Evans, Ian; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned;

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME APPENDIX 2

Date Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member

07/04/2021 10:30

Flexible Working Update Report For Cabinet to consider the proposals for the next stages of 

the Flexible Working Corporate Review workstreams
Lloyd, Marcus; Edmunds, Richard (Ed) Cllr. Gordon, Colin J

07/04/2021 10:30

21st Century Schools and Education Band B 

Programme – Statutory Objection Report for Ysgol 

Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon

​To consider the outcome of the Statutory Consultation 

process and recommendations in respect of the proposal to 

relocate and expand YGG Cwm Gwyddon
West, Andrea Cllr. Whiting, Ross

07/04/2021 10:30

21st Century Schools and Education Band B 

Programme – Statutory Objection Report for 

Trinity Fields School

 To consider the outcome of the Statutory Consultation 

process and recommendations in respect of the proposed 

expansion to Trinity Fields Special School
West, Andrea Cllr. Whiting, Ross

07/04/2021 10:30

Review of Waste Services - Contract Management 

Arrangements

​To consider proposals to strengthen contract management 

arrangements within Waste Services.
Harris, Stephen R Cllr. George, Nigel

07/04/2021 10:30

21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B 

Programme – Phase 2 Proposal for Plasyfelin 

Primary 

​To seek members views on the next phase of the 21st 

Century Schools Band B projects in order to proceed to 

Business Case submission to Welsh Government.
West, Andrea Cllr. Whiting, Ross

07/04/2021 10:30

21st Century Schools and Education Band B 

Programme – Phase 2 Llancaeach Junior School 

and Llanfabon Infants School

​To seek members views on the next phase of the 21st 

Century Schools Band B projects in order to proceed to 

Business Case submission to Welsh Government.
West, Andrea Cllr. Whiting, Ross

07/04/2021 10:30

21st Century Schools and Education Band B 

Programme – Phase 2 Proposal For Centre For 

Vulnerable Learners

​To seek members views on the next phase of the 21st 

Century Schools Band B projects in order to proceed to 

Business Case submission to Welsh Government.
West, Andrea Cllr. Whiting, Ross

07/04/2021 10:30

Fleet Review Update ​To update Cabinet on the progress to date on the service 

review of the Councils fleet.
Cooke, Paul; Richards, Sue Cllr. Ridgewell, John

21/04/2021 10:30

EAS Business Plan 2021-22 The EAS is required to submit an annual overarching regional 

Business Plan on an annual basis.  This report asks for 

members to consider the full contents of the draft EAS 

Business Plan as part of the regional consultation process.

Cole, Keri Cllr. Whiting, Ross

21/04/2021 10:30

Team Caerphilly Transformation Programme – 6 

monthly update

To provide members with an update on progress against the 

Team Caerphilly Transformation Strategy
Richards, Sue Cllr. Stenner, Eluned

P
age 11



21/04/2021 10:30

Corporate Performance Assessment Quarter 

1/Quarter 2

To provide Cabinet with a high level performance update of 

the Council (from April – September 2020) based on the 

information from the Directorate Performance Assessments 

(DPA) for the same period. 
Roberts, Ros; Richards, Sue Cllr. Stenner, Eluned

21/04/2021 10:30

Regeneration Board Project Update To recommend the allocation of up to £107k Regeneration 

Project Board Development Fund towards a recently 

endorsed and evaluated project and  note the allocation of 

Licence to Innovate Funding for Coffi Vista, Caerphilly.

To consider the allocation of additional funding for the 

Regeneration Project Board

  Kyte, Rhian Cllr. Morgan, Sean

21/04/2021 10:30

Cwmcarn Forest Drive ​To consider a proposed collaborative approach with NRW to 

enable the reopening of the Forest drive
Hudson, Paul; Kyte, Rhian Cllr. Morgan, Sean

P
age 12



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation 

          

 

 

                      

 

            

         

            

            

            

               

 

            

            

               

            

                 

            

            

               

                  

            

            

            

            

         

 

  

Is the issue of strategic 

importance? 

There is concern of poor 

performance or a significant 

budgetary issue has been 

identified 

Issue identified as corporate 

priority or identified as 

service or corporate risk 

 

Is the topic timely? Will 

scrutiny be able to make 

recommendations? 

Suitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

No 

Suitable as Task and Finish 

group review 

Unsuitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

Issue highlighted by an 

Auditor, Regulator or 

Inspector, which identified 

areas for improvement or 

concern. 

No 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Change to Legislation or 

Guidance 
No 

Evidence of public 

dissatisfaction (e.g. Public 

Satisfaction Survey)  
Yes 

 

No 

No Yes 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

 
 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
 6TH APRIL 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT:  TEAM CAERPHILLY-BETTER TOGETHER 
TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY 6-MONTH UPDATE 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 This report is to update Members of Committee on progress under the Team 

Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy. The programme management 
arrangements stipulate that a six-monthly update is provided to Members for 
comment prior to its presentation to Cabinet. 
  

1.2 Committee received a report on the 10th of November 2020 on strengthening the role 
of scrutiny in the transformation strategy (background papers). As a consequence, a 
member’s seminar will be delivered for all members on the 19th April 2021.  

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council’s Team Caerphilly – Better Together Transformation Strategy was 

adopted by Cabinet on the 12th of June 2019, subsequent to its consideration by Policy 
and Resources Scrutiny Committee on the 28th May 2019. This report provides an 
update on actions to deliver the strategy to date. It includes a summary of progress 
against the strategic actions, including the well-being and place-shaping framework, 
and the current series of corporate reviews, the commercial and investment strategy 
and the continuing Caerphilly Conversation. 

 
2.2 The report updates on the additional capacity agreed by Council on the 24th February 

2021. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members note the content of this report and make any comment on the progress 

against the strategy prior to the update being provided to Cabinet. 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To allow Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Members the opportunity to 

scrutinise progress and provide comments. 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Committee have received several updates on the Team Caerphilly – Better Together 

transformation strategy, the latest being a report on the 10th November 2020 which 
set out the options for strengthening the role of scrutiny in the delivery of the strategy 
(hyperlink at background papers). The programme management arrangements 
require that six-monthly progress reports are provided to Policy and Resources 
Scrutiny Committee, prior to presentation to Cabinet. In order to provide an update to 
Committee this report is grouped into headings that categorise the activity over the 
past five months. 

 
 
5.2 Corporate Reviews- Transforming How the Council Works 
  
 Committee has received information on the series of ten corporate reviews agreed by 

Cabinet in July of last year. A brief summary of progress against each is provided 
below, further detail against each outcome and workstream is provided in Appendix 
1. To remind Committee the corporate reviews are: 

 
  

1 Walk-in Services Review 

2 Remote Contact Review 

3 Front-line Delivery Review 

4 Support Services Review 

5 Information, Insight and Intelligence Review 

6 Flexible Working Review 

7 Sustainable Financial Planning Review 

8 Workforce Development Review 

9 Corporate Volunteering and Community Partnership Review 

10 Decision-making Review 

 
 Walk-in Services Review- The review is developing a decision-making model for the 

future  of walk-in services located in communities to optimise footfall, with a view to 

providing multiple services from a single location. This is researching similar models 

in operation across the UK based upon geographical spread and equity of access for 

residents. There are links to the Agile Working review and the needs of an agile 

workforce and the Remote Contact review and the digitisation of service provision. 

Remote Contact Review- The review is scoping options for a single contact number 

for all telephone enquiries whilst encouraging channel shift to self-service supported 

with automation. The review will look at the options for delivering the concept of a 

“digital front door” which will look at how the customer wishes to interact with the 

Authority, this will include but not limited to the website and intranet. Equality of digital 

services will be at the forefront of this review ensuring an improved service to both 

internal and external service users.  The review will also build on the success of the 

Authority’s automation journey, again customer focus and outcomes will be a key 

element.  Currently the automation team are developing the automation of the 

Page 16



 

customer complaints process working in conjunction with the Public Services 

Ombudsmen for Wales.  

Front-line Delivery Review- The review is looking at a long-term vision for the 

delivery of front-line services and the development of digital tools to link and improve 

the back-office functions. Increasing capacity across the front-line and unifying job 

descriptions to improve the service to customers by widening the roles of the 

available workforce.  

Support Services Review- This review is working to improve the effectiveness of 

support services, linking to technological improvements and more use of digital back-

office provision. Aiming to develop service standards for support services linked to 

the accessibility and availability of advice to internal services. Specific workstreams 

include streamlining internal invoicing processes and maximising the receipt of grant 

funding. 

Information, Insight and Intelligence Review- This review is working to understand 

and improve our data capture and use within the authority.  initial steps have been 

taken in mapping all data held by the Authority this will allow us to consider areas for 

consolidation.   Once we have full visibility of data capture, we can define data use 

and develop a set of cohesive reporting methods through dashboard and portals.  

This will also coincide with the automation work described above. A key element of 

the review will be the review of Its solutions and application in use within the 

Authority.  The review will look at the use of legacy systems.  Consideration will be 

given to consolidation of applications to ensure value for money of our current 

investment in modern digital tools such as O365.   To coincide with the work the 

upskilling and training of staff across the Authority will be fundamental to the success 

of the work programme. 

Flexible/Agile Working Review- This review reported to Committee at a special 

meeting on the 21st January 2021. 

Sustainable Financial Planning Review- This review is looking at longer term 

financial planning and horizon scanning, reviewing the current reporting model, 

considering the investment strategy, refreshing the Financial Regulations, training for 

staff on budget management, invoice centralisation, and automation of invoice 

processes.  

Workforce Development Review-. This review seeks to develop strategies and 

frameworks to support employee well-being and drive our workforce development, 

comprehensively review our end-to-end recruitment processes and redefine our 

opportunities for learning and development.  The draft Workforce Development 

Strategy is nearing completion and will shortly be progressing through the 

consultation process. A Well-Being Strategy is also being developed as part of this 

review.   

 

Corporate Volunteering and Community Partnership Review- This review is 

working to support social action in communities and rolling out the new Caerphilly 

Cares model of support for the most vulnerable. Part of the review is the 

Page 17



 

development of a staff volunteering policy to support activity in the community which 

will be reported to Committee on the 25th May 2021. 

Decision-making Review- This review will be looking to improve the visibility and 

understanding of decision-making processes with staff, in particular service 

managers and report writers to give greater clarity on levels of decisions and the 

appropriate governance route. It will include a review of delegated decisions and 

research at other local authorities on the effectiveness of committee and executive 

decision-making. 

5.3 Summary progress against each of the Corporate Review outcomes workstreams is 

 provided at Appendix 1. 

5.4 Audit Wales Involvement 

 Audit Wales (formerly Wales Audit Office) have instigated a Wales-wide project to 

look at recovery planning in the light of the current pandemic, ‘Recovery Planning- 

Assurance and Risk Assessment’, to focus work on learning from the first wave. Audit 

Wales are considering whether recovery processes are being planned and delivered 

with proper regard for economy, efficiency and effectiveness and that they are being 

done in accordance with the sustainable development principle. Audit Wales have a 

particular interest in the following reviews and have met with Lead Officers to provide 

challenge and support: 

• Sustainable Financial Planning 

• Workforce Development 

• Decision-making 

5.5 Audit Wales are providing oversight to the transformation programme in general and 

meet six-weekly with the interim Head of Transformation and transformation staff. 

5.6 Well-being and Place-shaping Framework and governance 

 The Joint Scrutiny Committee received a presentation and update report in the 

significant capital investments made over recent years to support the Council’s Well-

being Objective prior to the update being provided to Cabinet on the 24th February 

2021 (hyperlink at background papers). The framework has been in development 

since the spring of 2020 and has taken into consideration: 

• Existing long standing multi-annual investment programmes 

• Emerging and existing funding and investment opportunities 

• Corporate Plan priorities and objectives 

• Previously identified need 

• Collaborative project opportunities 

• Emerging Commercial opportunities 

• The Council’s Strategic Recovery Framework 

 It set out a list of potential investments across the county borough in excess of 

£231m that align explicitly with the Council’s wellbeing objectives. 

Page 18



 

 This investment framework provides the opportunity to build, repair and renew key 

infrastructure and assets across the county borough and supports aims and policy 

direction in a number of key documents including the Corporate Plan 2018-2023, the 

Sport and Active Recreation Strategy, the Regeneration Strategy 2018-2023 and 

proposals in the 21st Century Schools Band B programme. 

 The Well-being and Place-shaping framework is a key piece of the transformation 

programme for the county borough. Its governance will continue to be though the 

new Joint Scrutiny due to its overarching and wide-ranging nature and to reflect the 

significance of the proposed investments. 

 5.7 The governance of the transformation, place-shaping and regeneration programmes 

will be considered by officers over the next few months with a view to making 

improvements particularly in the setting of outcome measures. Further information on 

these changes will be included in the next update to Scrutiny. 

5.8 Commercial and Investment Strategy 

 Committee scrutinised the Commercial and Investment Strategy and high-level action 

plan on the 10th of November 2020, later agreed by Cabinet on the 9th of December 

2020. The aim of the strategy is to gather ‘profit with a purpose’ to secure the long-

term sustainability of discretionary services. Since this time the following activity has 

occurred.  

•  Significant success working alongside Caerphilly Destinations Managers who 

have been working on business planning and recovery in readiness for re-

opening venues once government guidance allows. Transformation team 

have been supporting the service in a new way of thinking and adopting a 

more commercial approach to their venue management. We have been 

working on developing business plans, collaborations between venues and 

other Council departments, training staff and focussed marketing activities. 

Each venue is working on a business plan for delivery over the next 3-5 years 

which it is hoped will offer significant reduction to the annual subsidy from 

£1.2 million to £700k.   

 

• Licence to Innovate process instigated, terms of reference and panel in place, 

The Panel met to discuss the first submissions in early February. 4 ideas 

were submitted to the process; a good take-up for the initial seed investment 

money available of £50k. Ideas included providing camping style 

accommodation at Llancaiach Fawr, commercialisation training for managers, 

and the development of an ice cream parlour at the Twyn Visitor Centre. The 

last of these was submitted to the Regeneration Board to ensure alignment 

with regeneration processes. We are hoping to secure additional seed monies 

for 21/22 and will then launch the scheme formally with all staff. The learning 

from the first few sessions is invaluable in making sure our process meets the 

criteria in the strategy – robust and agile. 

• Two new work streams have begun in relation to a review of fees and 

charges, and consideration of an advertising and sponsorship policy. Steering 

Page 19



 

groups will be set up with Transformation Manager- Commercialisation and 

other service managers undertaking a data gathering exercise before 

formulating some options and recommendations to bring through the 

governance process.  

 

• The Transformation Manager- Commercialisation is supporting activity in the 
Decarbonisation Strategy, particularly the Energy Prospectus 

  
 
5.9 Community Engagement and the Caerphilly Conversation   
 
 The Council’s Consultation and Engagement Framework was agreed in February last 
 year and included the following principles: 
 

• Empowering our residents to have greater influence over the issues that 
affect them. 

• Increasing and strengthening the role of communities in how we live, work, 
and visit Caerphilly county borough 

• Helping us to understand the needs of our communities, which in turn, will 
help to ensure the services we deliver meet those needs, and that available 

  resources are used effectively and in line with agreed priorities 

• Supporting communities to act, by helping them identify needs and 
  support them in developing community led solutions 
 
5.10 The council has recently conducted a comprehensive resident survey the ‘Caerphilly 
 Conversation’; the last full household survey having been conducted in 2017. The 
 survey sought views on a wide range of areas including satisfaction with council 
 services, our collective response to the COVID-19 pandemic and views on areas 
 such as education, housing, the local economy and climate change. The findings 
 from that consultation exercise are being used to inform the workstreams of the 
 Corporate Reviews at 5.2 above and the Well-being and Place-shaping Framework. 
 The Caerphilly Conversation will continue as the framework continues to be 
 delivered. Further information on the Well-being and Place-shaping Framework was 
 provided to the Joint Scrutiny Committee on the 22nd of February. 
 

5.11 Original Strategic Action Plan 

 The transformation strategy itself was agreed in 2019 and included a high-level 

strategic action plan as part of the document. This was considered for the final time 

by the Team Caerphilly Programme Board in December 2020, the actions are either 

now complete or have been subsumed into the corporate reviews and the Well-being 

and Place-shaping Framework. Some specific actions that have been completed 

against this original action plan since the last six-monthly update to Committee were: 

• Finalisation of the Commercial and Investment Strategy 

• Licence to Innovate and Commercial Panel process launched 

• Service Review Methodology finalised  

• Community Asset Transfer Policy agreed 

Page 20



 

• Directorate Performance Assessments being used across the Council and at 

Scrutiny 

• My Time and My Time Extra revision to the former performance appraisal 

process rolled out 

 

5.12 Conclusion   

Good progress has been made against the objectives of the Team Caerphilly- Better 
Together transformation strategy to: 

o Improve the way we work 

o Develop proud and trusted staff 

o Work better with communities 

 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 It is a reasonable assumption that the financial and demand challenges facing the 

authority will continue. The financial outlook is as challenging as it has been since 
austerity began, demand levels will continue to increase with changing demographics 
and increased expectations placed on the local authority. The approach to managing 
these challenges, and ensuring the resilience of the Council, is underpinned by the 
delivery of the #Team Caerphilly - Better Together transformation strategy.  Council 
services are likely to be further disrupted over the coming months due to the 
pandemic and so the pace of progress may be affected. However, the transformation 
programme is aiming to build on the organisational learning we have achieved over 
this period and to support the strategic recovery framework agreed by Cabinet 
towards the end of last year and the well-being of communities through the place-
shaping framework.. 

 
 
7.  SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1       This report is for information only. It does not relate to the development of a policy, 

strategy, practice or project. The transformation strategy Team Caerphilly: Better 
Together was adopted in June 2019 and an equality impact assessment was 
completed at that time.  

 
7.2 As individual reviews and projects are developed as part of the strategy separate 

integrated impact assessments will be developed at the formative stage of each. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Team Caerphilly – Better Together transformation strategy aligns with the 

Cabinet’s medium-term financial principles, the series of corporate reviews, the 
commercialisation strategy and the place-shaping plan. The principles and models 
will be a key element in ensuring that the Council remains financially resilient moving 
forward. 

 
8.2 Council agreed additional capacity to deliver on the aims and objectives of the 

Page 21



 

transformation strategy and place-shaping plan on the 24th of February 2021 at the 
scale and pace required. This additional capacity included a growth bid to 
permanently fund the two fixed term Transformation Manager posts and the existing 
fixed term Communications and Engagement Officer post.  In addition to this, a 
permanent Head of Transformation is required to lead the overall Transformation 
Programme. Capacity is also required to deliver the series of corporate reviews; this 
will be the appointment of four fixed term project managers (£368k) to be funded 
from the £1.8 million reserve previously agreed by Council.  

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific personnel implications directly resulting from this report. Should 

any staffing implications emerge through the programme of Corporate Reviews then 
consultations will take place with Trade Unions and all other relevant stakeholders. 

 
9.2 Members will note that a regular series of meetings has been set with the Trade 

Unions to update them on progress six-monthly, on the same timeline as updates to 
Scrutiny. 

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 All consultation responses received have been included in the body of this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003  
 
 
 
 
Author:        Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager (peterk@caerphilly.gov.uk)  
 
Consultees: Cllr Eluned Stenner- Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and 

Customer Services 
 Cllr James Pritchard- Chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Gez Kirby- Vice-chair Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Corporate Management Team 
 Corporate Review Leads: 
  Gareth Jenkins- Assistant Director, Head of Children’s Services 
  Liz Lucas- Head of Customer and Digital Services 
  Rob Tranter- Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 

 Rob Hartshorn- Head of Public Protection, Community and Leisure 
Services 

  Marcus Lloyd- Head of Infrastructure 
  Stephen Harris- Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer 
  Lynne Donavan- Head of People Services 
  Sue Richards- Head of Education Planning and Strategy 
      Union Representatives: 
   Lianne Dallimore- Unison 
   Neil Funnell- GMB 
   Gary Parr- Unite 
 

Page 22



 

 
Background Papers: 
 
Policy and Resources 10.11.20- The Role of Scrutiny in Strengthening Team Caerphilly 
Cabinet 24.2.21- Caerphilly Well-being and Place-shaping Framework 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Summary progress against each of the Corporate Review workstreams

Page 23

https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s500003383/The%20Role%20of%20Scrutiny%20in%20Strengthening%20Team%20Caerphilly%20Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.caerphilly.gov.uk/documents/s34397/Caerphilly%20Wellbeing%20and%20Place%20Shaping%20Framework.pdf?LLL=0


 

APPENDIX 1 
  
 WALK-IN SERVICES REVIEW 

 
WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Map buildings in use for walk-in services:-
location-purpose-usage-capacity-customer 
and community data. Map other public 
sector assets nearby. Linked to the outcome-
Location of buildings is optimised within 
communities to drive footfall and improve 
commerce. 

Data gathering nearly complete. Update to mapping tool to include locations and relevant service 
data overlaid with population and other considerations e.g. public transport/nearby parking. Will 
follow the tiers in the facilities framework see below. 

Analyse other review work-
hubs/libraries/community centres/state of 
the estate. 

Property data gathered. Previous work on community hubs, libraries and precursor work on 
community centres analysed. Working on a facilities framework for decision-making used a 3 
tiered approach starting with all-purpose multi-functional multi-service locations leading to other 
locations where some services may be provided e.g. digital. 

Multi-skilled public facing staff. Linked to the 
outcome- Customers can access multiple 
services in a single location. 

Research on hub arrangements in other library services underway. Leads are meeting to discuss 
the outcome of the December data officer group and scoping the 'ideal' service. Customer survey 
also being considered as part of co-production at this stage. 

Link to other reviews:   Remote Contact - 
Front-line Delivery - Agile Working. 

Meeting with Remote Contact and Agile Working corporate review workstream leads to ensure 
the reviews are aligned. 

Identify most suitable locations-Community 
Asset Transfer or disposal of surplus 
buildings. Linked to the outcome-Council 
significantly reduces the number of public 
facing assets it owns. 

Longer term. Mapping, data gathering and development of decision-making model required first. 
Community impact assessment process will follow that in the Agile Working Review to consider in 
particular cumulative impact and equity of access.  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24



 

 
 REMOTE CONTACT REVIEW 
 

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

One Number. Linked to the outcomes-
Customers will be able to contact the 
Council through a single telephone number.  
Customers can have multiple queries dealt 
with in a single interaction. 
Customers will have their enquiries ‘owned’ 
by customer advocates through to 
resolution. 

 

The current contact centre telephony system is being rolled out to other service areas; this is 
almost complete to those wishing to take up the service.   This will set the foundations for a one 
number approach. To date we have received positive feedback from telephone agents and 
managers after first tranche of rollout - reporting ease of use and improved efficiency, as well as 
solving problems caused by enforced home working during Covid-19 lockdown.  Improved 
customer experience by use of call volume and agent availability data, helping to ensure enough 
agents are available during peak times. 

Digital Front Door -CCBC Website. Linked to 
the outcomes- 
Customers can access, and in some cases 
have their enquiry resolved, outside normal 
business hours. 
Customers receive targeted 
communications on a regular basis. 
 

Initial scoping and customer requirement are being gathered.  Initial meetings of working group 
identified areas for joined-up working on public website and staff intranet projects with improved 
outcomes for both customers and staff.  Discussions with potential providers re discovery phase, 
looking for engagement with non-office-based staff following Directors' sessions.   Options for 
procurement are underway. 

Complaints process. Linked to the outcomes- 
Customers interactions will provide the 
opportunity to ‘add value’. 
Customers have a consistent customer 
experience when engaging with the 
Council. 
 

Complaints response team have been engaged with Ombudsman, have developed new processes 
in line with new guidance. External Provider procured to develop and produce full automated 
process and dashboard. 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



 

 FRONT LINE SERVICES REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

A frontline fit for the future. 
 

 

High level steer sought on future frontline service delivery as a pre-requisite the broader frontline 
services review. Report to ‘review the authority’s frontline service provision, and to allow 
consideration of options to ensure these services are shaped to be best placed to meet future 
public expectations and demand’ supported at Team Caerphilly Programme Board on 4th February 
2021. At time of writing, report was due to be considered at PDM on 17th March 2021.  

Connecting the frontline. Linked to the 
outcome- Frontline staff have the tools and 
information they need to operate across 
departmental boundaries.  
Frontline resources can access and update 
the council’s customer intelligence system.  
Customers can have multiple queries dealt 
with in a single interaction.  

Has two elements to  this workstream; supporting the wider roll out of the Abavus digital 
platform and an internal culture change programme on individual responsibility for ensuring 
issues are reported for action. Abavus roll out, led by Digital Services is progressing well with a 
view to launch of an app for customers to report service requests from their handheld devices 
with ease over the coming months. Pilot activity currently underway relating to processing and 
actioning of bulky waste collections using mobile devices. Focus group with cross directorate staff 
input to take place in March to consider shaping the campaign on individual responsibility.  

Building capacity on the frontline. 
 

A more formal approach to ensuring resilience and capacity is in place across frontline services is 
sought. Initial pilot underway with HGV Drivers across both the waste service and highways team 
to ensure capacity is in place to meet demand, particularly in instances of inclement weather. 
Highlighted to Trade Union colleagues as an area of discussion going forward.  

Strengthening relationships on the frontline. 
Linked to the outcome- ‘Neighbourhood 
Workforce Teams’ increase the visibility of 
the council across and connection to our 
communities.  
Customer interactions will provide the 
opportunity to ‘add value’.  
 

Mapping exercise to determine existing frontline resource, particularly by geographical area has 
been carried out. Mapping exercise highlights relevant officer and geographical location of 
responsibility to gain a full picture of the current ‘Neighbourhood Workforce Teams’ that exist 
informally. Pictorial illustration of this mapping activity is currently underway. Next step will be to 
seek further input from relevant frontline services to establish current level of informal cross-
departmental working with a view to strengthening these relationships further.  

Paperless front line. Linked to the outcome- 
Frontline resources can access and update 
the council’s customer intelligence system. 

Workshop session held, led by Housing Building Maintenance colleagues to showcase the 
capabilities of a paperless service, which has been operating successfully in terms of planning, 
allocation of tasks and in driving performance and customer satisfaction levels. Survey work is 
currently being carried out across frontline services to determine current levels of usage – paper 
vs digital solutions.  

P
age 26



 

A frontline that listens and responds. Linked 
to the outcome- Customers have a 
consistent customer experience when 
engaging with the council.  
 

Headline data from resident survey analysed and ‘quality of life’ issues identified. Next step is to 
conduct some further community focus groups on these issues, seeking mutual solutions. 
Recommendations to then follow. 

 
  
 SUPPORT SERVICES REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Support services fit for the future. Linked to 
the outcome- The council has efficient, 
effective and economic support services. 
Every support £ is spent on ‘value’ activity. 

High-level outcomes determined. Working towards a report that will consider the council’s vision 
for the long term delivery of support services, using best practice examples and insight from 
across the organisation.  

Support services as enablers (not barriers). 
Linked to the outcome- Support services 
operate to a consistent and published set of 
service standards.  

Feedback from cross-directorate staff engagement sessions has been considered and will form 
the basis of this corporate review. Long term culture change programme. Further focus groups to 
be conducted with support and non-support services to clarify direction. Profiling and 
familiarisation activity of the requirements of support services to be incorporated into this work 
stream. Review of current service standards to be carried out also.  

Support services working smarter/better. 
Linked to the outcome- Business partners 
are available to all directorates to ensure 
their needs and service standards are being 
met. Every support £ is spent on ‘value’ 
activity. 

Feedback collated from Heads of Service via service profiling to determine current approaches to 
support services. Peer review of current approaches to corporate support to determine areas of 
good practice – both internally and externally.  

Efficient support services at the forefront of 
technological change. 
 

High level outcomes determined. Staff feedback has been reviewed. Initial pilot on internal 
recharging and internal invoicing now being explored as part of the Sustainable Financial Planning 
corporate review. Future, further opportunities to utilise automation software to reduce 
administrative burden being explored in partnership with Digital Services.  

Forward-thinking support services. Linked to 
the outcome- All support services operate 
under a centralised professional 
management structure 

Data gathering activity to be conducted on how other councils deliver support services under a 
centralised, professional management structure. Also linking with the councils Commercial 
Strategy to explore opportunities for support services to be ‘partner of choice’, using expertise 
and skills. 

P
age 27



 

 
  
 INFORMATION, INSIGHTS, and INTELLIGENCE REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Data Audit. 

 
Initial audit of data sources due to be completed March.  Using industry-recommended forms, but 
capturing additional info re systems and where data is reported, to help identify priorities for 
consolidation, report-building & automation (linking to other workstreams). 

Review of legacy applications and system 
review. 

Digital Solutions Board initiated.  Meeting arranged and terms of reference agreed.  Full list of 
contracts and solutions identified complete with funding streams and commitments.  Work 
underway to centralize all funding for all ICT contracts and solutions.   Identification of 
applications for consolidation will develop as the solutions board progress.  O365 E5 deployment 
partner procured via GCloud.  Implementation to progress prior to the 1st April. 

Universal Reporting Structure. Linked to the 
outcome- An enterprise data platform is in 
place that enables the Council to securely 
and efficiently use data and analytics to 
make decisions. 
Officers in the field and across customer 
touch points can access and update the 
intelligence system in real time. 
The collection and presentation of 
performance data is automated. 
The organisation has an enhanced 
analytical capacity that can confirm current, 
and identify future, need. 

Data Audit results will help to inform priorities for enhanced report development.  Met with 
colleagues from other Local Authorities and Centre for Digital Public Services Wales to discuss 
their experience and potential collaborative work.  

Software Skills for Staff. 
 

Leads confirmed – workstream refined to cover CCBC-wide staff skills in key software packages 
(previous focus on data interpretation skills). 

Implementation of the Digital Strategy. 
Linked to the outcome-The Council has an 
enterprise data and information strategy in 
place that supports predictive analytics as a 
means of identifying forthcoming need 

Digital Strategy noted by Policy and Resources Scrutiny 10th Nov, resources identified and 
additional funding agreed at Council 24th February.   Deployment partner engaged. Work 
progressing to deploy E5 licences.  Strategy to be presented to Cabinet May 2021.  Development 
of the PowerBi platform in progress. Support procured and upskilling of staff in place. 

P
age 28



 

 
 
 AGILE (FLEXIBLE) WORKING REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Define our approach to agile working. Linked 
to the outcome- Clear definition of the agile 
working offer where an appropriate mix of 
home / remote and office-based working is 
supported; and employees are trusted to 
get their job done flexibly. 

Categories of agile/flexible working established, consulted on and agreed in principal. 
Categorisation Exercise underway to establish the number of roles associated with each type of 
work. Exercise is well advanced - qualitative data collated to support the quantitative data. 

Resource / Infrastructure assessment. 
Linked to the outcome- Officers and 
Members have the equipment and 
infrastructure to work effectively and safely 
in an agile way. 

Workgroup established to review the IT data held in respect of the issue of IT equipment.  
Refreshed management information has been collated to use in the analysis. 
Data from the Categorisation exercise will be cross referenced against the IT Equipment data to 
better understand our remaining equipment needs and costs. 
 

Policy and procedure review. 
Linked to the outcome- Our policy and 
procedures are updated to support staff 
and compliment flexible/agile working. 
 

HR have commenced a policy review. 20 HR policies have been identified agreed with TUs to be 
reviewed. 

1. Property portfolio and economic 
impact assessment 

2. Community impact and future 
engagement 
 

Linked to the outcome- Administrative 
buildings are repurposed to provide an 
appropriate mix of fixed desks / hot desks, 
touch down points, quiet space and 
meeting space. 

1. An assessment of the economic impact and the potential implications for our 
assets/building use is underway - in collaboration with colleagues in Property, 
Business Improvement and Digital & Customer Services. 

2. Caerphilly Conversation Survey Responses being reviewed for relevant data to 
contribute to the assessment of impact. Collaboration with leads for Walk-in 
Services and Remote Access Services Reviews to ensure a joined-up approach. 
Requirement for additional data is being assessed. 
 

P
age 29



 

Linked to the outcome- Managers are 
trained accordingly and supported to 
manage a remote/hybrid workforce 

Refer to Workforce Development Review - Manager Training Programme 
 

 
 
 SUSTAINABLE FINANCIAL PLANNING REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Long Term Financial Planning. Linked to the 
outcome – Ensure the Council has a long-
term financial plan that supports the 
delivery of council services and the 
development of new and improved service 
models and matching our budget to the 
specific needs of the community.  

Medium Term Financial Plan updated and approved by Council. 

Review of Investment Strategy. Linked t the 
outcome- Ensure it is sustainable and 
enables us to turn on and off services as 
required.  

New investment being made £10 million into - longer term investments. Regular meetings with 
investment advisors being held, quarterly updates being provided. Focus group being set up and 
other LA's to be reviewed for the types of investments that are being made. 

Financial Regulations Refresh & Training. 
Linked to the outcome- Help to develop 
outcome based budgeting.  

Work stream and leads identified and initial sessions being diarised.  

Invoice centralization and automation. 
Linked to the outcome- Effective and 
efficient spend control.  

Microsoft Dynamics session to be held and project brief finalised.  

Internal invoicing. Linked to the outcome- 
Effective and efficient spend control. 

Workstream and lead identified, and some initial data capture being done.  

Finance teams restructure.  
 

Conversations to be held with managers in relation to structure and how we can support the 
transformation team and corporate reviews.  

 
 
  
 

P
age 30



 

  
 
 
 
 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW  
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

1. Workforce Planning 
2. Workforce Development Strategy 

 
Linked to the outcome- Current and future 
workforce needs are known, modelled and 
are capable of meeting changing service 
delivery requirements and needs through 
implementation of the Workforce 
Development Strategy and Workforce 
Planning Framework and manager toolkit. 

1. Workforce Planning Framework and Manager Toolkit is in production.  
Guidance notes and tools have been drafted for initial feedback. 

2. The Workforce Development Strategy has been drafted and is undergoing final 
edits in readiness for the consultation process.  

1. Recruitment Review 
2. Corporate Induction 

 
Linked to the outcome- Modernised and 
agile vacancy management, on-boarding 
and induction programmes, fit for purpose 
as we look to embed flexible working 
across the authority. 

1. A comprehensive end-to-end process mapping exercise is being undertaken by 
HR. The opportunity to develop the HR / Payroll system to introduce modules to 
assist this process is being considered by HR & Procurement. 

2. Information has been collated from the Director Engagement Sessions to inform 
the Induction programme. 
 

Well-being Strategy. Linked to the 
outcome- Development of a Well-being 
Strategy outlining our commitments, 
priority actions and corporate 
objectives to support our employees’ 
physical and mental health and well-
being at this especially difficult time. 

Draft Well-being Strategy in production. 
Employee Survey being compiled with a section specific to Well-being. Information collated will 
inform organisational priorities. 

 

P
age 31



 

Manager Training Programme. 
Linked to the outcome- Compilation of a 
management learning and development 
programme.  
 

Discussions undertaken with training providers, colleges, universities and the National Training 
Federation for Wales to identify training pathways and development opportunities. 
Collaboration with Gwent Police to introduce the MeUs Leadership development programme. 
Collation of financial information across the Authority to support decisions in respect of learning 
and development. Management learning and development opportunities being reviewed, 
including managing remote / hybrid teams to support agile working. 
 

 
  
 CORPORATE VOLUNTEERING AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP REVIEW 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Support & Embed Social Action within our 
Communities – Mapping. Linked to the 
outcome- Community resources are 
nurtured in order to provide additional 
capacity and support to key areas of need.  

Work almost finalised with Data Cymru- to establish new support page for professionals and 
residents, which will provide information on all support services available to residents. Caerphilly 
Cares team currently mapping all activity with external organisations to maximise value and 
collaboration opportunities. Existing community groups have been supported to collaborate and 
share best practice through strengthening links between them - first virtual meeting to be held 
before end of March.  

Support & Embed Social Action within our 
Communities – Building relationships and 
empowering  (Caerphilly Cares). Linked to 
the outcome- Community resources are 
nurtured in order to provide additional 
capacity and support to key areas of need. 
The community spirit seen through Covid-
19 becomes the backbone of the borough. 

Project progressing well towards launch on 6th April. Key milestones being met - process 
mapping, development of data systems, key relationships with priority partners strengthened. 
Communications/launch plan being finalised also - work is ongoing in establishing the required 
performance metrics. 
 

Support & Embed Social Action within our 
Communities – Culture (link to Caerphilly 
Conversation). Linked to the outcome- The 
community spirit seen through Covid-19 
becomes the backbone of the borough. 

Following endorsement of the Place Shaping and Wellbeing Plan, council-wide approach to 
community engagement is moving forward at pace. Introduction to Consultation and Engagement 
Framework has been delivered to Management Network tier officers and more in-depth 
'masterclass' training for key officers is scheduled for April. Similar training opportunities to be 
made available to Members also. Resident survey complete and results analysed and published 
online. Session with Leadership team and Management Network scheduled to ensure data/insight 
is fed into service planning/corporate review process.  

P
age 32



 

Corporate Volunteer Policy -  Developing 
and Implementing  Policy. Linked to the 
outcome- Council has an approved 
Volunteering Strategy that creates and 
sustains volunteering capacity across 
Caerphilly communities.  
Council staff are able to volunteer and have 
their contributions recognised.  

Policy is now called Employee Volunteering Scheme. Currently listed on Forward Work 
Programme as below.  
 
Programme Board  08/04/21, PDM 28/04/21, P and R 25/05/21, Cabinet 09/06/21. 
Launch plan/idea to be discussed as part of working group. Following adoption of scheme, 
programme of work to take place to harness staff skills to support existing community priorities.  
 

Third sector delivery and associated 
outcomes for communities. 

Recently added workstream. Full remit and scope of this element of the review to be agreed with 
relevant Head of Service and Project Leads.  

 
 
 DECISION MAKING REVIEW 
 
  

WORKSTREAM PROGRESS UPDATE 

Managing your Service.  Linked to the 
outcome- Review options for delegated 
decision-making capability to individual 
executive members as well as Directors 
with appropriate thresholds and safeguards 
all of which is approved by our Regulators. 

 

Meeting scheduled with WLGA for some support on decision making and governance 
arrangement to share best practise. Recruited volunteers feedback and WAO report to be 
considered as part of this work stream 

Committee & Cabinet Effectiveness. Linked 
to the outcome- Ensuring cabinet decision 
making and scrutiny committee 
arrangement which focus appropriately on 
Council wide strategic issues aligned to 
Cabinet FWP.  
 

3 local authorities selected for a peer review: Wigan, Swansea & RCT. Scope of review to be 
agreed by Head of Service with support from transformation team  

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34


	Agenda
	3 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held on 23rd February 2021.
	5 Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.
	Appendix 1  - Policy & Resources FWP
	Appendix 2 - Cabinet Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 3 - FWP Prioritisation Chart

	7 Team Caerphilly-Better Together Transformation Strategy 6-Month Update.

